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UNITED STATES
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Interactive Data File required to be submitted posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T rdutie preceding 12 months (or
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of the Exchange Act.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

LANDEC CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

February 27, May 30,
2011 2010
(Unaudited) Q)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 6,67¢ $ 27,817
Marketable securitie 31,75¢ 20,42:
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfacants of $307 and $189 at February 27, 2011 a
May 30, 2010, respective 19,30¢ 18,631
Accounts receivable, related pa 17z 72¢
Income taxes receivah 33t 73¢
Inventories, ne 18,93¢ 16,10"
Notes and advances receiva 191 241
Deferred taxe 1,30¢ 1,262
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,165 2,98¢
Total Current Asset 80,84: 88,94:
Investment in nc-public company, nc-fair value 793 793
Investment in nc-public company, fair valu 15,00( —
Property, plant and equipment, | 51,32 50,16:
Goodwill, net 41,24 41,154
Trademarks/tradenames, | 12,42¢ 12,42¢
Customer relationships, n 3,44z 3,67¢
Other assets 3,601 3,04t
Total Assets $ 208,67. $ 200,19’
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 15,08: $ 14,35¢
Related party accounts paya 60 34¢
Accrued compensatic 2,88t 2,04:
Other accrued liabilitie 3,17(C 3,271
Deferred revenu 3,96¢ 3,391
Current portion of long-term debt 4,32¢ 4,521
Total Current Liabilities 29,49t 27,93t
Long-term debr 16,50: 19,24¢
Deferred revenu — 1,00(C
Deferred taxe 10,08( 8,801
Other non-current liabilities 11,31 10,73;
Total Liabilities 67,38¢ 67,72:
Stockholder Equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shartt®azed; 26,381,996 and 26,490,259 shares
issued and outstanding at February 27, 2011 and3@ag2010, respective 27 27
Additional paic-in capital 120,03( 117,73(
Accumulated other comprehensive | (212) 179
Retained earnings 19,86: 13,20¢
Total Stockholder Equity 139,70¢ 130,78«
Noncontrolling interest 1,58( 1,691
Total Equity 141,28t 132,47!
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 208,67. $ 200,19°

(1) Derived from audited financial statements.

See accompanying notes.
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Revenues
Product sale
Services revenue, related pa
License fee:

LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Three Months Ende

Nine Months Ende:

Research, development and royalty revenues

Total revenue
Cost of revenue
Cost of product sale
Cost of product sales, related pe
Cost of services revenue
Total cost of revenu
Gross profit
Operating costs and expens
Research and developmt
Selling, general and administrative
Total operating costs and expenses
Operating incom:
Dividend and interest incon
Interest expens
Other expense
Net income before taxe
Income tax expense
Consolidated net incormr
Noncontrolling interes
Net income available to common stockholc

Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share

Shares used in per share computal
Basic

Diluted

February 27  February 28  February 27  February 28
2011 2010 2011 2010

$ 71,49 $ 55,81: $ 201,47C $ 172,69:
54¢ 721 2,60( 2,80(

1,35C 1,35( 4,05( 4,05(

12C 25(C 51C 464

73,50¢ 58,13: 208,63( 180,00t

60,32: 48,95: 167,52: 151,06°

227 372 2,74¢ 2,192

482 682 2,20¢ 2,33t

61,03: 50,00¢ 172,48( 155,59

12,47¢ 8,127 36,15( 24,41«

2,27¢ 99¢ 6,762 2,88(

6,45¢ 4,38¢ 18,18: 13,13¢

8,73 5,38t 24,94¢ 16,01¢

3,74 2,742 11,20¢ 8,39¢

167 142 391 69€
(19€) 4 (631) (8)

(44) — (14€) —

3,672 2,88( 10,81¢ 9,08¢
(1,350 (1,072) (3,917 (3,249

2,322 1,80¢ 6,90¢ 5,83t
(24) (74) (257) (383)

$ 2,29t $ 1,73, $ 6,657 $ 5,457
$ 0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.2t $ 0.21
$ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.2t $ 0.2C
26,37¢ 26,36 26,39¢ 26,351

26,63¢ 26,64¢ 26,65¢ 26,64«

See accompanying notes.
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LANDEC CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income

Nine Months Ende:

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortizati
Stocl-based compensation expel
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensation expel
Increase in lon-term receivablt
Deferred taxe
Changes in current assets and current liabili
Accounts receivable, n
Accounts receivable, related pa
Income taxes receivab
Inventories, ne
Issuance of notes and advances receiv
Collection of notes and advances receivi
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Accounts payabl
Related party accounts paya
Income taxes payab
Accrued compensatic
Other accrued liabilitie
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie

Purchases of property and equipm

Purchase of marketable securi

Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketalolersies
Investment in non-public company (fair market value

Net cash used in investing activit|

Cash flows from financing activitie

Repurchase of outstanding common st

Taxes paid by Company for stock swaps to coverstaxeRSU:
Proceeds from sale of common st

Tax benefit from stoc-based compensatic

Payments on lor-term debt

Decrease in other ass:

Payments to minority interest holders

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Net decrease in cash and cash equiva

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Supplemental schedule of noncash operating aetv

Income tax expense not paya

Long-term receivable from Monsanto for guaranteed teatiom
Accrued minority interest distributic

Unrealized loss from interest rate sv

February 27  February 28
2011 2010

$ 6,90¢ $ 5,83t
3,91C 2,391

1,39¢ 68€
(2,017% (88¢)
(600) (600)

1,237 1,81¢

(667) 80¢

55€ 437

2,367 —
(2,827 (759)
(3,06¢) (2,872

3,11¢ 2,68:
824 (1,080
731 (1,189
(289) (184

— 862

84z 207
43¢ (281)
(425) (802)

12,43¢ 7,08(
(4,875 (3,745
(57,600) (64,339
46,26 23,64¢
(15,000 —
(31,210 (44,435
(1,189 —
(57 (337)

12¢ 17

2,017 88¢

(2,940 —

38 —
(362) (331)

(2,362) 23¢
(21,139 (37,120
27,811 43,45¢

$ 6,67¢ $ 6,33¢
$ 2,017 $ 88¢€
fee $ 60C $ 60C
$ — 3 25C
$ 40 $ —

See accompanying notes .
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LANDEC CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation and Summary dbignificant Accounting Policies
Organization

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aidpolymer products for
food and agricultural products, medical devices lesahsed partner applications that incorporatedeas patented polymer
technologies. The Company has two proprietarympelytechnology platforms: 1) Intelimer® polymeaad 2) hyaluronan (“HA”)
biopolymers. The Company’s HA biopolymers are pietpry in that they are specially formulated fpesific customers to meet strict
regulatory requirements. The Company’s polymernetdgies, along with its customer relationships ttiade names, are the foundation, and
a key differentiating advantage upon which Landes luilt its business. The Company sells spequtkaged fresh-cut vegetables and
whole produce to retailers and club stores, prilparithe United States and Asia through its Apia,. (“Apio”) subsidiary, Hyaluronan-
based biomaterials through its Lifecore Biomeditrad, (“Lifecore”) subsidiary, and Intellicoat® cieal seed products through its Landec Ag
LLC (“Landec Ag”) subsidiary.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finant@éments of Landec have been prepared in accadeitit accounting
principles generally accepted in the United Stéde#terim financial information and with the imgttions for Form 10-Q and Article 10 of
Regulation S-X. In the opinion of managementadjustments (consisting of normal recurring ac&uladve been made which are necessary
to present fairly the financial position at Febguar, 2011 and the results of operations and daslsffor all periods presented. Although
Landec believes that the disclosures in these diahrtatements are adequate to make the informptiesented not misleading, certain
information normally included in financial statenteand related footnotes prepared in accordandeagitounting principles generally
accepted in the United States have been condenseditbed per the rules and regulations of the 8tes and Exchange Commission. The
accompanying financial data should be reviewedimnjunction with the audited financial statementd ancompanying notes included in
Landec's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgedr ended May 30, 2010.

The results of operations for the nine months ertddatuary 27, 2011 are not necessarily indicatimtb@results that may be
expected for an entire fiscal year due to someosesity in Apio’s food business, particularly, ApsoExport business and the order patteri
Lifecore’s customers which are difficult to predésid can lead to significant fluctuations in Lifeg's quarterly results of operations.

Basis of Consolidation

Arrangements that are not controlled through votingimilar rights are reviewed under the guidaofceariable interest entities
(“VIES"). A company is required to consolidate the assetkiliies and operations of a VIE if it is determéhto be the primary beneficiary
the VIE.

In June 2009, the FASB changed the consolidatiatyais for VIES to require a qualitative analysisietermine the primary
beneficiary of the VIE. The determination of thénpary beneficiary of a VIE is based on whetherghéty has the power to direct matters
which most significantly impact the activities bEtVIE and has the obligation to absorb lossetheright to receive benefits, of the VIE
which could potentially be significant to the VIEhe guidance requires an ongoing reconsideratiadheoprimary beneficiary and also
amends the events triggering a reassessment. Thguidance was effective for the Company beginiitay 31, 2010. Additional
disclosures for VIEs are required, including a digsion about a reporting entity’s involvement whtEs, how a reporting entity’s
involvement with a VIE affects the reporting entjinancial statements, and significant judgmeartd assumptions made by the reporting
entity to determine whether it must consolidate\the.




Under the new guidance, an entity is a VIE andextttip consolidation, if by design: a) the totaligginvestment at risk is not
sufficient to permit the entity to finance its adtiies without additional subordinated financiapport provided by any parties, including
equity holders or b) as a group the holders oktigty investment at risk lack any one of the failog three characteristics: (i) the power,
through voting rights or similar rights to direbetactivities of an entity that most significantiypact the entity’s economic performance,
(i) the obligation to absorb the expected losdab® entity, or (iii) the right to receive the eqied residual returns of the entity. The
Company reviewed the consolidation guidance andloded that the non-public companies in which tleenfany holds equity investments
are not VIEs. The Company has concluded that tisere impact on the financial statements as ates$the adoption of the new guidance.

Under applicable accounting guidance, a Companyasasidered the requirements to consolidate aty émtwhich it holds voting
control and concluded that due to the lack of \@tiontrol, the Company is not required to constdidae investments in non-public
companies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplequires management to
make certain estimates and judgments that affecatmounts reported in the financial statementsaaodmpanying notes. The accounting
estimates that require management’s most significkfficult and subjective judgments include reuenrecognition; sales returns and
allowances; recognition and measurement of cuamdtdeferred income tax assets and liabilitiesagsessment of recoverability of long-
lived assets; the valuation of intangible assetsiaventory; the valuation and nature of impairnsesitinvestments; and the valuation and
recognition of stock-based compensation.

These estimates involve the consideration of coxijaletors and require management to make judgmé&hesanalysis of historical
and future trends, can require extended periodisnefto resolve, and are subject to change fronogeo period. The actual results may di
from management’s estimates.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company records all highly liquid securitieshathree months or less from date of purchase toinityaas cash
equivalents. These securities consist mainly dffmate of deposits (CDs), money market funds &h8. Treasuries. Short-term marketable
securities consist of CDs that are FDIC insuredsingle A or better rated municipal bonds with or& maturities of more than three months
at the date of purchase regardless of the matlaity as the Company views its portfolio as avadldébt use in its current operations . The
aggregate amount of CDs included in marketablerg@=uat February 27, 2011 and May 30, 2010 waar&D$1.5 million, respectively. The
Company classifies all debt securities with read#yermined market values as “available for salelhe contractual maturities of the
Company's marketable securities that are due @nthes one year represent $24.8 million of its ratalile securities and those due in one to
two years represent the remaining $7.0 millionhef Company’s marketable securities as of Februarg@11. These investments are
classified as marketable securities on the corat@iibalance sheet as of February 27, 2011 and3®la3010 and are carried at fair market
value. Unrealized gains and losses are reportaccasponent of stockholdemsuity. The cost of debt securities is adjustedafoortizatior
of premiums and discounts to maturity. This anzatton is recorded to interest income. Realizedsgand losses on the sale of available-
for-sale securities are also recorded to interesirne and were not significant for the three ame& mionths ended February 27, 2011 and
February 28, 2010. During the three and nine nwatided February 27, 2011, the Company receiverteds of $18.6 million and $26.3
million, respectively, from the sale of marketabézurities. The cost of securities sold is basethe specific identification method.

Financial Instruments

The Company'’s financial instruments are primardynposed of marketable debt securities, commereiat-trade payables, grower
advances, and notes receivable, as well as long#ietes receivables and debt instruments. Fot-$@wn instruments, the historical carrying
amount is a reasonable estimate of fair valuer \Fdiles for long-term financial instruments nadiy marketable are estimated based upon
discounted future cash flows at prevailing markétriest rates. Based on these assumptions, maaagbatieves the fair market values of
the Company’s financial instruments are not maligrdifferent from their recorded amounts as of felyy 27, 2011.
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Investments in Non-Public Companies

The Company’s investment in Aesthetic Sciences @atpn (“Aesthetic Sciences”), a medical devicenpany, is carried at cost
and adjusted for impairment losses. Since tren@ireadily available market value informatiore @ompany periodically reviews this
investment to determine if any other than tempodaglines in value have occurred based on the dinhstability and viability of Aesthetic
Sciences. Aesthetic Sciences sold the rightstBntartfil™ Injector System on July 16, 2010. Lemt#las evaluated its cost method
investment for impairment, using a discounted dkwsh analysis which included the terms of the pas# agreement. Based on the terms of
the agreement, the Company had determined thavigstment in Aesthetic Sciences was other thapaoearily impaired and therefore
recorded an impairment loss of $1.0 million as @y\80, 2010. The Company'’s carrying value ofriteestment in Aesthetic Sciences of
$793,000 at February 27, 2011 is reported as astment in non-public company, non-fair value he accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

On February 15, 2011, the Company made an investm&indset Holdings 2010 Ltd., a Canadian corgiora(“Windset”), which
is reported as an investment in non-public compétaiyyalue, in the accompanying consolidated badssheets as of February 27, 2011. The
Company has elected to account for its investnreli¥indset under the fair value option (see Note 3).

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses fair value measurement accoufatirfimancial assets and liabilities and for finedénstruments and certain
other items at fair value. The Company has eletttedair value option for its investment in a noublic company (see Note 3). The
Company has not elected the fair value option fiyraf its other eligible financial assets or lidtls.

The accounting guidance established a thierehierarchy for fair value measurements, whigbrtizes the inputs used in measur
fair value as follows:

Level 1- observable inputs such as quoted prices for idgrntistruments in active marke

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices in active markeds are observable either directly or indirectisotigh corroboration wit
observable market dai

Level 3 — unobservable inputs in which therkittle or no market data, which would require then@pany to develop its own
assumptions

As of February 27, 2011, the Company held certagets and liabilities that are required to be nreakat fair value on a recurring
basis, including cash equivalents, marketable gigesjrinterest rate swap and liability for contamg consideration in connection with the
acquisition of Lifecore.

The fair value of the Company’s cash equivalentbraarketable securities is determined based omradisle inputs that are readily
available in public markets or can be derived fiaformation available in publicly quoted marketfiefefore, the Company has categorized
its cash equivalents and marketable securitiesegslL1.

The fair value of the Company’s interest rate sigagetermined based on model inputs that can beredd in a liquid market and
key inputs include yield curves and are categoraetlevel 2 inputs. As of February 27, 2011, teenfany recorded to other comprehensive
loss on the consolidated balance sheets an ureddtizs of $212,000, net of taxes of $125,000 asgnting the cumulative change in the
interest rate swap since inception. If the interate swap is terminated or the debt borroweaid pff prior to April 30, 2015, the amount of
unrealized loss or gain included in other comprshenincome (loss) would be reclassified to earsinfhe Company has no intentions of
terminating the interest rate swap or prepayingiiat in the next twelve months. The interest satap liability is included in other non-
current liabilities as of February 27, 2011 and N8y 2010.

The fair value of the Company’s liability for comgjent consideration is based on significant inpotsobserved in the market and

thus represents a Level 3 measurement. The Congmaymined the fair value of the liability for thentingent consideration based on a
probability-weighted discounted cash flow analyasfurther discussed in Note 2.
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The Company has elected the fair value option obawting for its investment in Windset. The faifuaof the Company’s
investment in Windset utilizes significant unobsdse inputs in the discounted cash flow modelduttiag projected cash flows, growth ra
and the discount rate, and is therefore consideegd| 3, as further discussed in Note 3.

Imprecision in estimating unobservable market inmain affect the amount of gain or loss recorded foarticular
position. Furthermore, the Company believes itsatéon methods are appropriate and consistenttivithe of other market participants. ~
use of different methodologies or assumptions terdene the fair value of certain financial instremts could result in a different estimate of
fair value at the reporting date.

The Company has no other financial assets or lliegsilfor which fair value measurement has beemptatb

New Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Adopted Pronouncements

Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance whictnaisithe evaluation criteria to identify the prignbeneficiary of a
VIE. Additionally, the new guidance requires ongpreassessments of whether an enterprise isitharyrbeneficiary of the VIE. The
Company adopted the new guidance on May 31, 20d&ach adoption did not have an impact on the Caipaesults of operations or
financial position for the three and nine monthdezhFebruary 27, 2011.

Revenue Recognitic

In October 2009, the FASB issued new guidancelatiom to "Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangem&nt The new standard
changes the requirements for establishing sepangit® of accounting in a multiple element arrangetnaad requires the allocation of
arrangement consideration to each deliverable tealsed on the relative selling price. The Comparly adopted these standards as of
31, 2010. There have been no materially modifgr@é@ments since the adoption of the standard.a@bption did not have an impact on the
Company'’s results of operations or financial positior the three and nine months ended Februarg@11.

2. Acquisition of Lifecore Biomedical, Inc.

On April 30, 2010 (the “Acquisition Date”), the Cprany acquired all of the common stock of LifecoierBedical, Inc. (“Lifecore”)
under a Stock Purchase Agreement (“Purchase Agra&nire order to expand its product offerings amdes into new markets. Lifecore was
a privately-held hyaluronan-based biomaterials camydocated in Chaska, Minnesota. Lifecore isgpially involved in the development
and manufacture of products utilizing hyaluronanagurally occurring polysaccharide that is widdigtributed in the extracellular matrix of
connective tissues in both animals and human2007, Lifecore entered into a wondde exclusive license and development agreemeth
the Cleveland Clinic Foundation to develop and camuialize hyaluronan-based products and relateticapipns. The license is for patented
hyaluronan-based cross-linking technology, CoffeBiohydrogel products that can be used for prodincéesthetics, orthopedics,
ophthalmology and other medical fields. Lifecors hat yet indentified any potential commercial proid for this technology, however,
Landec will continue to investigate potential apations.

Under the Purchase Agreement, the aggregate coasaepayable by the Company to the former Lifecstockholder at closing
consisted of $40.0 million in cash, which includggi6 million that is held in an escrow accountdowse the indemnification rights of Landec
and other indemnities with respect to certain msttecluding breaches of representations, wararagnd covenants included in the Purchase
Agreement. The escrow account is in the nameeo$étier and Landec’s right under the escrow ageaewronsist solely of its ability to file a
claim against the escrow In addition, the Company may be required to pagaish up to an additional $10.0 million in earncagments in
the event that Lifecore achieves certain revenigeeta in calendar years 2011 and 2012.
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The acquisition date fair value of the total comsadion transferred was $49.65 million, which cetesi of the following (in
thousands):

Cash $ 40,00(
Contingent consideration 9,65(
Total $ 49,65(

The assets and liabilities of Lifecore were recdrdetheir respective estimated fair values asi@fdate of the acquisition using
generally accepted accounting principles for bussreombinations. The excess of the purchase pvieetbe fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired has been allocated to goodwilld@iticepresents a substantial portion of the asitjon proceeds because of the workforce
in-place at acquisition and because of Lifecorefgylhistory and future prospects. Managemengbedi that there is further growth potential
by extending Lifecore’s product lines into new chels.

The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of Lifecore’s assets acquired and liabiliissumed and related deferred
income taxes, effective April 30, 2010, the date @ompany obtained control of Lifecore (in thousgnd

Cash and cash equivalel $ 31¢
Accounts receivable, n 1,86(
Inventories, ne 9,00¢
Property and equipme 25,52¢
Other tangible asse 1,45¢
Intangible assets 7,90(
Total identifiable assets acquir 46,07
Accounts payable and other liabiliti (2,989
Long-term debi (4,157
Deferred taxes (3,169
Total liabilities assumed (10,309
Net identifiable assets acquir 35,76¢
Goodwill 13,88:
Net assets acquired $ 49,65(

The Company used a combination of the market astiajgproaches to estimate the fair values of tfexbie assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. The initial measurement ef éissets acquired and the liabilities assumedrasfithe acquisition of Lifecore will be
completed during the measurement period after cetiopl of analyses related to Lifecore's incomegankich is not expected to be
significant.

Inventory

A step-up in the value of inventory of $523,000 wexorded in the allocation of the purchase prased on valuation
estimates. During the three and nine months eRdbduary 27, 2011, $119,000 and $413,000, respdygtiof this step-up was charged to
cost of products sold as the inventory was sold.ofFebruary 27, 2011, $18,000 of the step-up ieedan inventory.
I ntangible Assets

The Company identified two intangible assets inngmtion with the Lifecore acquisition: trade nanaakied at $4.2 million, which
is considered to be an indefinite life asset amdetore will not be amortized; and customer baseedhat $3.7 million with a twelve year

useful life. The trade name intangible asset wasedbusing the relief from royalty valuation methartd the customer relationship intangible
asset was valued using the multi-period excessregrmethod.
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Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred oweefatin values assigned to the assets acquiredaitities assumed was
$13.9 million, which represents the goodwill amorggulting from the acquisition which can be atitédble to its work force in place at the
time of the acquisition and to Lifecore’s long bist and future prospects. None of the goodwillpexted to be deductible for income tax
purposes. The Company will test goodwill for impagnt on an annual basis or sooner, if deemed sagesFor the nine months ended
February 27, 2011, goodwill has increased $89,000apily due to adjustments in Lifecore’s defertad balance as of the acquisition date.

Liability for Contingent Consideration

In addition to the cash consideration paid to trener shareholder of Lifecore, the Company mayeogiired to pay up to an
additional $10.0 million in earnout payments based.ifecore achieving certain revenue targets leragar years 2011 and 2012. The fair
value of the liability for the contingent considéoa recognized on the acquisition date was $9.8lomand $9.65 million, as of February :
2011 and May 30, 2010, respectively, and is cless#s a non current liability in the ConsolidaBalance Sheets. The Company projects
that it will pay the entire $10 million earn outrthg the third quarter of fiscal year 2012.

3. Investments in nor-public companies

In December 2005, Landec entered into an excllsigasing agreement with Aesthetic Sciences foretteusive rights to use
Landec's Intelimef] materials technology for the development of derfilals worldwide under the agreement. The Compaatgived
shares of preferred stock in exchange for the $eemith a valuation of $1.8 million. Aesthetic Saies sold the rights to its Smartfil™
Injector System on July 16, 2010. Landec has awetlits investment in Aesthetic Sciences for impant, utilizing a discounted cash flow
analysis under the terms of the purchase agreenBased on the terms of the sale, the Company éidrdined that its investment was other
than temporarily impaired and therefore recordedrgrairment charge of $1.0 million as of May 30120 The Company'’s carrying value of
its investment in Aesthetic Sciences is $793,000f &ebruary 27, 2011.

On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharelage agreement (the “Purchase Agreemevith) Windset Holdings 2010 Ltd.,
Canadian corporation (“Windset”). Pursuant to thecRase Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 senédemed shares for $15 million and
201 common shares for $201 that were issued by $¥inthe “Purchased Shares”). The Compsuiegmmon shares represent a 20.1% int
in Windset. The non-voting senior preferred shaielsl a cash dividend of 7.5% annually. The dividés payable within 90 days of each
anniversary of the execution of the Purchase AgezenThe Purchase Agreement includes a put anadgtidin, which can be exercised on
sixth anniversary of the Purchase Agreement whefgliy can exercise the put to sell its Purchaseaté&Ehto Windset, or Windset can
exercise the call to purchase the Purchased SfiaresA\pio, in either case, at a price equal to 20df the appreciation in the fair market
value of Windset from the date of the Company’sBstment through the put and call date, plus thehase price of the Purchased Shares.
Under the terms of the arrangement with WindsetGbmpany is entitled to designate one of five mensibn the Board of Directors of
Windset.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the investrim Windset does not qualify for equity methedaunting as the investment
does not meet the criteria of in-substance comnmgksue to returns through the annual dividenthennon-voting senior preferred shares
that are not available to the common stock holdé&sthe put and call options require the Purch&weates to be put or called in equal
proportions, the Company has deemed that the imeggt in substance, should be treated as a siaglegity for purposes of accounting. The
Company has adopted fair value option in the acogfor its investment in Windset effective on @hequisition date. The Company
believes that reporting its investment at fair egtwovides its investors with useful informationtbe performance of the Company’s
investment and the anticipated appreciation inevalsi Windset expands its business.

The Company also entered into an exclusive licagseement with Windset, which was executed in 2016, prior to
contemplation of Apio’s investment in Windset (d¢ate 5).
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The fair value of the Company'’s investment in Wietdsas determined utilizing a discounted cash flo@del based on projections
developed by Windset, and considers the put and@aVversion options. These features impact thatour of the cash flow utilized to derive
the estimated fair value of the investment. The Gamy has concluded that the estimated fair valuts afivestment in Windset approximates
the cash consideration paid for the Purchased Shatbe date of acquisition. Assumptions incluitetthe discounted cash flow model will
be evaluated quarterly based on Windset's actuhpasiected operating results to determine the gham fair value.

From the close of the Purchase Agreement to Fep@i&r2011, the Company recorded $47,000 in diddemhich are included in
dividend and interest income. There was no chamgee fair market value of its investment in Wiatlfom the close date of February 15,
2011 to the quarter ended February 27, 2011.

4, License Agreement with Monsanto Compan'

On December 1, 2006, Landec entered into a five-geaxclusive technology license and polymer syipgreement the Monsant
Agreement”) with Monsanto for the use of Landedtellicoat polymer seed coating technology. Under the teritseoMonsanto
Agreement, Monsanto agreed to pay Landec Ag $2lemper year. The Monsanto Agreement was ameimu&bvember 2009. Under the
terms of the amended Monsanto Agreement, Monsamttinzies to have an exclusive license to use Lasadieiellicoat polymer technology
for specific seed treatment applications. Ovemrémaining two-year term of the amended MonsanteAgent, Monsanto will investigate
uses of Landec’s Intellicoat technology in a variaft seed categories in the field exclusively lised to Monsanto.

Along with regaining the use of the Intellicoatheology outside of the specific applications liaeth$o Monsanto under the amen
Monsanto Agreement, Landec has assumed respotysibiliLandec Ags operating expenses and realizes all the reveaneeprofits from th
sales of existing and new Intellicoat seed coapiroglucts.

The Monsanto Agreement also provides for a fee lgay@ Landec Ag of $4 million if Monsanto eleatstérminate the Monsanto
Agreement or $10 million if Monsanto elects to fhase the rights to the exclusive field. If theghase option is exercised before December
2011, or if Monsanto elects to terminate the Mots#greement, all annual license fees and supphlyngats that have not been paid to
Landec Ag will become due upon the purchase oritextion.  If Monsanto does not exercise its pasghoption by December 2011 Landec
Ag will receive the termination fee and all rightsthe Intellicoat seed coating technology will revert to Landec. Adaagly, we will receive
aggregate minimum guaranteed payments of $17 mifbo license fees and polymer supply payments fiveryears or $23 million in
aggregate maximum payments if Monsanto elects tohaise the rights to the exclusive field. The mimin guaranteed payments and the
deferred gain of $2 million per year described aall result in Landec recognizing revenue andrapeg income of $5.4 million per year
for fiscal years 2008 through 2011 and $2.7 millg@n year for fiscal years 2007 and 2012. Theeimemtal $6 million to be received in the
event Monsanto exercises the purchase option leasdeferred and will be recognized upon the exemitshe purchase option. The fair
value of the purchase option was determined by gemant to be less than the amount of the defeenezhue.

If Monsanto elects to purchase the rights to theusive field, a gain or loss on the sale will beagnized at the time of purchase. |If
Monsanto exercises its purchase option, we expeattier into a new long-term supply agreement Witinsanto pursuant to which Landec
would continue to be the exclusive supplier of lliteat polymer materials to Monsanto.

For each of the three and nine months ended Fgb27a2011 and February 28, 2010, Landec recogr$zegb million and $4.05
million, respectively, in revenues from the MonsaAgreement.

5. Other License Agreement:

In March 2006, Landec entered into an exclusivenise and research and development agreement wiBréducts and Chemicals,
Inc. (“Air Products”). Landec will provide reseairand development support to Air Products for thyegrs with a mutual option for two
additional years. The license fees were recograsditense revenue over a three year period biegjiviarch 2006. In addition, in
accordance with the agreement, Landec receivesof@P& gross profit generated from the sale of potglby Air Products occurring after
April 1, 2007, that incorporate Landec’s Intelinmeaterials.
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In September 2007, the Company amended its licgrasid supply agreement with Chiquita Brands Intéonal, Inc.
(“Chiquita™). Under the terms of the amendmehg¢ license for bananas was expanded to includ¢i@uli exclusive fields using Landec’s
BreatheWay® packaging technology, and a new exausiense was added for the sale and marketimy@tados and mangos using
Landec’s BreatheWay packaging technology. Theeageat with Chiquita, which terminates in Deceml&t2(subject to Chiquita’s five
year renewal option), requires Chiquita to pay ahiguoss profit minimums to Landec in order for @fita to maintain its exclusive licen
for bananas, avocados and mangos. Under the tdrting agreement, Chiquita must notify Landec befdecember $of each year whether
it is going to maintain its exclusive license fbetfollowing calendar year and thus agree to payrmimums for that year. Landec was
notified by Chiquita in November 2010 that Chiguitanted to maintain its exclusive license for cdirnyear 2011 and thus agreed at that
time to pay the minimum gross profit for calendaary2011.

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieeagreement with Windset for Windset to utilize daad's proprietary breathable
packaging to extend the shelf life of greenhoussvgrcucumbers, peppers and tomatoes (“exclusivéuots”). In accordance with the
agreement, Apio received and recorded a one-tifreniresearch and development fee of $100,000nalhdeceive license fees equal to 3%
of net revenue of the exclusive products utilizihg proprietary breathable packaging technologth wi without the BreatheWay®
trademark. The ongoing license fees are subjesmiboial minimums of $150,000 for each of the thypes of exclusive product as each is
added to the agreement. As of February 27, 201l§,ane product has been added to the agreemertharilst year minimum payment
period had an original payment date of June 20Hbwever, this date has been deferred until A@il2due to delays in obtaining the
required packaging materials.

6. Stock-Based Compensatiot

In the three and nine months ended February 27.,,26& Company recognized stock-based compensatpense of $436,000 and
$1,398,000 or $0.02 and $0.05 per basic and dilsitege, respectively, which included $197,000 6&iL$00 for restricted stock unit awa
and $239,000 and $747,000 for stock option graespectively. In the three and nine months enddxiuary 28, 2010, the Company
recognized stock-based compensation expense of (B2¥4nd $686,000 or $0.01 and $0.03 per basid#éuned share, respectively, which
included $150,000 and $352,000 for restricted stogkawards and $124,000 and $334,000 for stotbwgrants, respectively.

The following table summarizes the stock-based @argation expense by income statement line item:

Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months

Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 27, February 28, February 27, February 28,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Research and developm $ 106,000 $ 48,000 $ 334,000 $  142,00(
Selling, general and administrative $ 330,000 $ 226,000 $ 1,064,000 $  544,00(
Total stocl-based compensation expel $ 436,00( $ 274,000 $ 1,398,000 $ 686,00(

As of February 27, 2011, there was $3.4 millionatél unrecognized compensation expense relatedwested equity compensation
awards granted under the Company’s incentive gitaoks. Total expense is expected to be recognizedtbe weightedwverage period of 2
years for both stock options and restricted statkawards
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7. Net Income Per Diluted Share
The following table sets forth the computation dfiéd net income per share (in thousands, excepsipare amounts):

Three Months Three Months  Nine Months Nine Months

Ended Ended Ended Ended
February 27, February 28, February 27, February 28,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Numerator:
Net income available to common stockholc $ 2,29t % 1,732 % 6,657 $ 5,452
Denominator
Weighted average shares for basic net income pee 26,37¢ 26,36 26,39¢ 26,357
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options and restricted stock units 25¢ 284 25E 287
Weighted average shares for diluted net incomesipaire 26,63« 26,64¢ 26,65¢ 26,64
Diluted net income per sha $ 0.0¢ $ 0.07 $ 0.2 % 0.2C

For the three months ended February 27, 2011 amdi&ey 28, 2010, the computation of the dilutedinebme per share excludes
the impact of options to purchase 1.7 million shamad 1.1 million shares of Common Stock, respelstias such impacts would be
antidilutive for these periods.

For the nine months ended February 27, 2011 andi&sb28, 2010, the computation of the dilutedinebme per share excludes
impact of options to purchase 1.8 million shares Al million shares of Common Stock, respectivas/such impacts would be antidilutive
for these periods.

8. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the three anmmmonths ended February 27, 2011 was $1.4 mili@h$3.9 million,
respectively. The effective tax rate for both theee and nine months ended February 27, 2011 wper8ént compared to 38 percent and
37 percent for the same periods in fiscal year 20h@ effective tax rates for the three and ninatim®ended February 27, 2011 differ from
the statutory federal income tax rate of 35 peresrd result of several factors, including stateganon-deductible stock-based compensation
expense, and tax exempt interest. In additionéattove, the Company was able to further reducefthetive tax rate for fiscal year 2011 as
a result of being a recipient of a therapeutic dmeglit award and the extension of the federalanebeand development credit. The effective
tax rates for the three and nine months ended Bep@y, 2011 differed from the statutory federalime tax rate as a result of the same state
taxes, non-deductible stock-based compensatiomsepand tax exempt interest factors.

As of May 30, 2010, the Company had unrecognizedbémefits of approximately $868,000. Includedhia balance of
unrecognized tax benefits as of May 30, 2010 is@pmately $708,000 of tax benefits that, if reczgl, would result in an adjustment to
Company’s effective tax rate. The Company doeeRrpect that the amounts of unrecognized tax benefit change significantly within the
next twelve months.

In accordance with accounting guidance, the Compasydecided to classify interest and penaltiegeelto uncertain tax

positions as a component of its provision for inediaxes. The Company did not accrue interest andlfies relating to the income tax on
unrecognized tax benefits as of February 27, 2@ilIMay 30, 2010 as the amounts were not significant
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Due to tax attribute carryforwards, the Compansuigject to examination for tax years 1994 forwandd.S. tax purposes. The
Company was also subject to examination in vargtate jurisdictions for tax years 1998 forward, @oif which were individually significar

9. Goodwill and Other Intangibles

The Company'’s intangible assets are comprised stboer relationships with an estimated usefuldifevelve years and
trademarks/trade names and goodwill with indefitiites (collectively, “intangible assets”), whidmet Company recognized in accordance
with accounting guidance (i) upon the acquisitibhiéecore in April 2010, our HAbased Biomaterials reporting unit, (i) upon theuisition
of Apio in December 1999, which consists of our ##&woducts Technology and Export reporting units @if) from the repurchase of all nc
controlling interests in the common stock of Landecin December 2006. Accounting guidance defgpasdwill as the excess of the cost
an acquired entity over the net of the estimatad/&ues of the assets acquired and the liaksliissumed at date of acquisition.” Al
intangible assets, including goodwill, associatéith whe acquisitions of Lifecore and Apio were alited to our HA-based Biomaterials
reporting unit and our Food Products Technologyprepg unit, respectively, pursuant to accountingdgnce based upon the allocation of
assets and liabilities acquired and consideratad for each reporting unit. The consideratiordgar the Export reporting unit approxima
its fair market value at the time of acquisitiondaherefore no intangible assets were recordedrimection with the Company’s acquisition
of this reporting unit. Goodwill associated wittetTechnology Licensing reporting unit consistsrehyt of goodwill resulting from the
repurchase of the Landec Ag non controlling interes

The Company tests its intangible assets for impaitat least annually, in accordance with accogrgimdance. When evaluating
indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairmeatcounting guidance requires the Company to conmtparéir value of the asset to its
carrying value to determine if there is an impaintriess. When evaluating goodwill for impairmergdcaunting guidance requires the
Company to first compare the fair value of the réipg unit to its carrying value to determine ietle is an impairment loss. If the fair value
of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying valuggdywill is not considered impaired; thus applicataf the second step of the two-step
approach under accounting guidance is not requifgzplication of the intangible assets impairmezst$ requires significant judgment by
management, including identification of reportingjts, assignment of assets and liabilities to repgunits, assignment of intangible asse
reporting units, and the determination of the Yailue of each indefinite-lived intangible asset agbrting unit based upon projections of
future net cash flows, discount rates and markétiphes, which judgments and projections are inh#yeuncertain.

Property, plant and equipment and finite-lived ingfible assets are reviewed for possible impairmdrenever events or changes in
circumstances occur that indicate that the carrgimgunt of an asset (or asset group) may not lwwveeable. The Company’s impairment
review requires significant management judgmeriuiliog estimating the future success of produadjrfuture sales volumes, revenue and
expense growth rates, alternative uses for thasaasd estimated proceeds from the disposal adigbets. The Company conducts quarterly
reviews of idle and underutilized equipment, andaws business plans for possible impairment irtdisa Impairment occurs when the
carrying amount of the asset (or asset group) ebsciée estimated future undiscounted cash flowsthadmpairment is viewed as other than
temporary. When impairment is indicated, an impaintrcharge is recorded for the difference betwberatses book value and its estimat
fair value. Depending on the asset, estimated/édire may be determined either by use of a disezlcdésh flow model or by reference to
estimated selling values of assets in similar ciorali The use of different assumptions would inseear decrease the estimated fair value of
assets and would increase or decrease any impdimeasurement.

The Company tested its indefinite-lived intangigsets and goodwill for impairment as of July Z8,®and determined that no
adjustments to the carrying values of the intamgéssets were necessary as of that date. As oidrgl?7, 2011, there were no impairment
indicators identified by the Company in its anadysi impairment associated with the acquired indefilived intangible assets. On a
quarterly basis, the Company considers the neagdate its most recent annual tests for possibpairment of its intangible assets, based on
management’s assessment of changes in its busindssther economic factors since the most recentarevaluation. Such changes, if
significant or material, could indicate a need polate the most recent annual tests for impairmititecintangible assets during the current
period. The results of these tests could leadritevdowns of the carrying values of the intangid$sets in the current period.
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The Company uses the discounted cash flow (“DCpf)y@ach to develop an estimate of fair value. D& approach recognizes
that current value is premised on the expectedpectfuture economic benefits. Indications ofumare developed by discounting projected
future net cash flows to their present value atta that reflects both the current return requirgmef the market and the risks inherent in the
specific investment. The market approach was setlio value the Food Products Technology, Hyahmdrased Biomaterials and
Technology Licensing reporting units (the “Repagtidnits”) because insufficient market comparables exist &blenthe Company to devel
a reasonable fair value of its intangible asse&stduhe unique nature of each of the Company'oRe Units.

The DCF approach requires the Company to exeradgnjent in determining future business and findrior@casts and the related
estimates of future net cash flows. Future net flasés depend primarily on future product salesjchitare inherently difficult to predict.
These net cash flows are discounted at a ratedfiatts both the current return requirements efrttarket and the risks inherent in the
specific investment.

Our Technology Licensing unit has no indefiniteelivintangible assets and $4.8 million of recordeaidyvill. At July 25, 2010, the
date of our last annual goodwill impairment testmglysis, the estimated fair value of the repgrtinit exceeded its carrying value by
approximately 38%. The operations of the reporting consist mainly of a license agreement betwssrdec Ag and Monsanto for the use
of Landec’s Intellicoatpolymer seed coating technology (see Note 4). Utldeterms of the Monsanto agreement, Monsantgpaifla fee t
Landec Ag of $4 million if Monsanto elects to temaie the Monsanto Agreement or $10 million (Monsdras a $6 million option to
purchase the rights to the licensed fields) if Morts elects to purchase the rights to the licefisttl If Monsanto does not exercise its
purchase option by December 2011 Landec Ag wikirexthe termination fee and all rights to the lliteat seed coating technology will
revert to Landec. In that scenario, because thdreevno future revenue streams from the Monsagi@ement, the $4.8 million of goodwiill
would be fully impaired and thus written off. If Meanto elects to purchase the rights to the ex@dsld, we expect a gain to be recognized
at the time of purchase to the extent that the iemgconsideration to be received, including tBendillion purchase option, exceeds the
carrying value of the net assets, including goddwilir annual and ongoing assessment of impairofethie goodwill associated with the
Technology Licensing reporting unit considers thabability that Monsanto will exercise its rightsgurchase the exclusive field. Given the
recent progress in this program, the Company bedi¢iere is a reasonable possibility that Monsaiilt@xercise its option, which is
considered in determining the existence of impainiedicators. At February 27, 2011, the Compangstaot believe that goodwill in the
Technology Licensing reporting unit is impaired .

The DCF associated with the Food Products Techyalegorting unit is based on management’s five-yeajection of revenues,
gross profits and operating profits by fiscal yaad assumes a 37% effective tax rate for each ydanagement takes into account the
historical trends of Apio and the industry categsiin which Apio operates along with inflationaagtors, current economic conditions, new
product introductions, cost of sales, operatinge@sgs, capital requirements and other relevantvwtata developing its projection. The
estimated fair value of the Food Products Technotegorting units as of July 25, 2010 was more tthamble its carrying value.

The fair value of indefinite and finite-lived intgible assets associated with our acquisition aédafe on April 30, 2010, was
determined using a DCF model based on manageniamtgear projections of revenues, gross profitd aperating profits by fiscal year and
assumes a 33% effective tax rate for each yeamalflament takes into account the historical trefdsf@core and the industry categories in
which Lifecore operates along with inflationary tiars, current economic conditions, new producbidtictions, cost of sales, operating
expenses, capital requirements and other relexaatwhen developing its projection. The trade namangible asset was valued using the
relief from royalty valuation method and the cuséomrelationship intangible asset was valued udiegnulti-period excess earnings method.
The fair value of goodwill was calculated as theess of consideration paid, including the fair eadd contingent consideration under the
terms of the purchase agreement, over the failevafiihe tangible and intangible assets acquirgslllebilities assumed. The Company
updated its analysis of the fair value of the imuigd-lived intangible assets and goodwill as efahnual impairment analysis date, concluding
that the fair value of the Hyaluronan-based Biomal® reporting unit, as determined by the DCF apph, exceeded its book value, and
therefore, no intangible asset impairment was deemexist.
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10. Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (finsfirst-out method) or market and consisted &f fbllowing (in thousands):

February 27 May 30,

2011 2010
Raw materials $ 8,39¢ $ 6,86¢
Work in progres: 2,68¢ 2,01z
Finished goods 7,851 7,22¢
Total $ 18,93¢ $ 16,10:

11. Debt

On April 30, 2010 in conjunction with the acquisitiof Lifecore, Lifecore entered into a new $20limil Credit Agreement with
Wells Fargo Bank N.A. (“Wells Fargo”) with a fiveegir term that provides for equal monthly principayments plus interest. All of
Lifecore’s assets, valued at approximately $85iamlkas of February 27, 2011, have been pledgeédors the debt incurred pursuant to the
Credit Agreement. Landec is the guarantor of #iat.d

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratistrial revenue bonds (“IRB”). These bonds vasgumed by Landec in the
acquisition of Lifecore (see Note 2). The bondsaollateralized by a bank letter of credit whislsécured by a first mortgage on the
Company'’s facility in Chaska, Minnesota. In atit the Company pays an annual remarketing fealéq.125% and an annual letter of
credit fee of 0.50%.

The Credit Agreement and the IRB contain certastrigtive covenants, which require Lifecore to meatain financial tests,
including minimum levels of net income, minimum ckiratio, minimum fixed coverage ratio and maximecapital expenditures.

On August 9, 2010 and September 14, 2010, the Coyngrmended its Credit Agreement with Wells Fargmtwlify certain
financial covenants. The amendment on August 2020nended the definition of the net income of ¢die to exclude non-recurring
expenses incurred in connection with the acquisitibLifecore and to exclude expenses relatedeartipact of adjustments from purchase
accounting (e.g. inventory step-up, discount onetiim out, etc.) as they relate to the minimuninmaime covenant. The aforementioned
adjustments were made to the initial forecasttt@tCompany had previously provided Wells FargocWhias the basis for the covenants in
the Credit Agreement and which were necessarydomptiance as of May 30, 2010. The amendment oteSdyer 14, 2010 amended the
definition of the net income of Lifecore to includely the current fiscal year to date results anmared to the previous trailing four quarter
basis, so as to exclude results prior to the aitgprisIn addition, the minimum net income requiramh for the first quarter ended August 29,
2010 was changed to $1.00 from $500,000. As ofuelpr27, 2011, the Company was in compliance witbavenants.

Long-term debt consists of the following (in thonds):
February 27, May 30,
2011 2010

Credit agreement with Wells Fargo; due in monttdympents of $333,333 through Apr

30, 2015 with interest payable monthly at Liborgp% per annur $ 17,000 $ 19,667
Industrial revenue bond issued by Lifecore; duarinual payments through 2020 with

interest at a variable rate set weekly by the rentgarketing agent (0.48% and

2.56% at February 27, 2011 and May 30, 2010, réisied0 3,83( 4,10z
Total 20,83( 23,77(
Less current portion (4,329 (4,527)
Long-term portion $ 16,50, $ 19,24¢

The maturities on the IRB are held in a sinkingdfatcount, recorded in Prepaid expenses and athemt assets in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets anddsopaieach year on Septembet.1
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12. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to interest rate risks pifiyrtarough borrowings under its Credit Agreemaiith Wells Fargo (see Note
11). Interest on all of the Company’s borrowingsler its Credit Agreement is based upon varialitrést rates. As of February 27, 2011,
the Company had borrowings of $17.0 million outdtag under its Credit Agreement which bear inteag¢st rate equal to the one-month
LIBOR plus 2%. As of February 27, 2011, the ins¢rate on borrowings under the Credit Agreemerst &ruing at 2.375%.

In May 2010, the Company entered into a five-yaterest rate swap agreement under the Companytit@greement which
expires on April 30, 2015. The interest rate swag designated as a cash flow hedge of futureastt@ayments of LIBOR and has a notic
amount of $20 million. As a result of the intereste swap transaction, the Company fixed for ajigar period the interest rate at 4.24%
subject to market based interest rate risk on $Hl®mof borrowings under its Credit AgreementhéfCompany’s obligations under the
interest rate swap transaction as to the scheghalgihents were guaranteed and secured on the saimseabas its obligations under the Credit
Agreement. As of February 27, 2011, the Compaggnded to Other Comprehensive Loss on the CorsgetidBalance Sheets an unrealized
loss of $212,000, net of taxes of $125,000, asaltref the interest rate swap. The unrealized Weas based on Level 2 hierarchy for fair
value measurements. If the interest rate swagrisihated or the debt borrowed is paid off prioAfwil 30, 2015, the amount of unrealized
loss or gain included in Other Comprehensive Inc@inoss) would be reclassified to earnings. The @any has no intentions of terminating
the interest rate swap or prepaying the debt iméhe twelve months. The interest rate swap lighigs included in other non current liabiliti
as of February 27, 2011 and May 30, 2010.

13. Related Party

Apio provides cooling and distributing services famms in which the Chairman of Apio (the “Apio Ghman”) has a financial
interest and purchases produce from those farnpgo @so purchases produce from Beachside Produ€efdr sale to third
parties. Beachside Produce is owned by a groentities and persons, including the Apio Chairntaat supply produce to Apio. Revenues
and the resulting accounts receivable and costaafyet sales and the resulting accounts payablelassified as related party items in the
accompanying financial statements as of Februar@¥1 and May 30, 2010 and for the three and mioeths ended February 27, 2011 and
February 28, 2010.

Apio's domestic commodity vegetable business whistedBeachside Produce in 2003. The Apio Chairimsan12.5% owner in
Beachside Produce. During the three and nine msamtbed February 27, 2011, the Company recogn@&eshues of $189,000 and $545,C
respectively, from the sale of products to Beadh§icbduce. During the three and nine months eRdbduary 28, 2010, the Company
recognized revenues of $214,000 and $637,000, céeply, from the sale of products to BeachsidedBo®. The related accounts receivable
from Beachside Produce are classified as relatdgl pathe accompanying financial statements asedfruary 27, 2011 and May 30, 2010.

The Apio Chairman and Windset entered into a laadé in July 2009, which included an option to pase the land in Santa Maria,
California for $10.5 million. Windset exercised @ption to purchase the land from the Apio Chairroa March 2, 2011. Windset intends to
initially construct 64 acres of indoor vegetabledarction along with the required support facilittes growing, harvesting, grading and sell
numerous varieties of hydroponically grown tomatoes

All related party transactions are monitored qubrtiey the Company and approved by the Audit Corteribf the Board of
Directors.

14. Comprehensive Income (Loss

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net incanteother comprehensive income which for Landeludes changes in
unrealized gains and losses on marketable seusitié changes in unrealized gains and losses mndtsst rate swap with Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A. Accumulated other comprehensive losgj®rted as a component of stockholders’ equiegr the three months ended February
27, 2011 the unrealized loss on the interest ratp slecreased $201,000 and for the nine monthgdreteruary 27, 2011, the net
comprehensive loss from the unrealized loss olntieeest rate swap, net of income taxes, was $202,6or the three and nine months er
February 28, 2010, the comprehensive income fromalized gains on marketable securities, net anmetaxes, was $2,000 and $94,000,
respectively. Accumulated other comprehensivernmeds reported as a component of stockholderstgqui
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15. Stockholders Equity

During the three and nine months ended Februarg@, 52,155 and 107,421 shares of Common Stesgectively, were issued
upon the vesting of RSUs and upon the exercis@tidmms under the Company’s equity plans.

During the three and nine months ended Februarg@¥l, the Company granted options to purchasan@ 36,000 shares,
respectively, of common stock and 0 and 12,00Qeesely, of restricted stock unit awards.

As of February 27, 2011 the Company has resenithBlion shares of Common Stock for future issweoader its current and
former equity plans.

On July 14, 2010, the Company announced that tleedBaf Directors of the Company had approved thabéishment of a stock
repurchase plan which allows for the repurchaagdd $10 million of the Company’s Common Stockhe Company may repurchase its
common stock from time to time in open market pasgs or in privately negotiated transactions. tirheg and actual number of shares
repurchased is at the discretion of managemeiteo€bmpany and will depend on a variety of factrduding stock price, corporate and
regulatory requirements, market conditions, thathet attractiveness of other capital deploymemtoofunities and other corporate
priorities. The stock repurchase program doeohligate Landec to acquire any amount of its comstook and the program may be
modified, suspended or terminated at any timeeatbmpany's discretion without prior notice. Dgrthe three and nine months ended
February 27, 2011, the Company repurchased onpie market 0 and 215,684 shares, respectivelys @ammon Stock for $0 and $1.2
million, respectively.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholdeEgjuity
(in thousands, except share amounts)
February 27, 201

Common Stock Shares

Balance at May 30, 201 26,490,25
Stock options exercised, net of shares tend 82,29
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares tesut 25,13(
Common stock repurchased on the open market (215,689
Balance at February 27, 2011 26,381,99

Common Stock

Balance at May 30, 201 $ 27
Stock options exercised, net of shares tend —
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares tesat —
Common stock repurchased on the open market —

Balance at February 27, 2011 $ 27
Additional Paid-in Capital

Balance at May 30, 201 $ 117,73(
Stock options exercised, net of shares tend 69
Vested restricted stock units, net of shares tesat —
Stocl-based compensation expel 1,39¢
Tax-benefit from stock based compensation exp: 2,015
Common stock repurchased on the open market (1,189
Balance at February 27, 2011 $ 120,03(
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

Balance at May 30, 201 $ 179
Change in other comprehensive loss (33
Balance at February 27, 2011 $ (212
Retained Earnings

Balance at May 30, 201 $ 13,20¢
Net income 6,657
Balance at February 27, 2011 $ 19,86
Noncontrolling Interest

Balance at May 30, 201 $ 1,691
Noncontrolling interest in net incon 251
Distributions to noncontrolling interest (362)

Balance at February 27, 2011 $ 1,58(
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16. Business Segment Reportin

Landec operates in four business segments: the Faatlicts Technology segment, the Export segmentiA-based Biomaterials
segment and the Technology Licensing segment. Folee Products Technology segment markets and paedalty packaged whole and
fresh-cut vegetables that incorporate the Breathe¥gacialty packaging for the retail grocery, cibre and food services industry. In
addition, the Food Products Technology segmerd BetatheWay packaging to partners for non-vegetatdducts. The Export segment
consists of revenues generated from the purchakeade of primarily whole commodity fruit and veaglele products to Asia. The HA-based
Biomaterials segment sells products utilizing hyahan, a naturally occurring polysaccharide thatigely distributed in the extracellular
matrix of connective tissues in both animals anch&ms for medical use in the ophthalmic, orthopedit veterinary markets. The
Technology Licensing segment licenses Landec’snpadielntellicoat seed coatings to the farming induand licenses the Company’s
Intelimer polymers for personal care products atheoindustrial products. Corporate includes caapogeneral and administrative expenses,
non Food Products Technology interest income andpgamy-wide income tax expenses. All of the assktise Company are located within
the United States of America. The Company’s iradaomal sales are primarily to Europe, Canada, @aajindonesia, China and
Japan. Operations and identifiable assets by essisegment consisted of the following (in thousgnd

Three Months Ended February 27, Food Produc HA-based Technology

2011 Technology Export Biomaterials Licensing Corporate TOTAL
Net sales $ 47,70¢ $ 12,17¢  $ 12,157 $ 1,47C $ — % 73,50¢
International sale $ 4,758 $ 11,95¢ $ 10,36: $ o $ o $ 27,07¢
Gross profi $ 327¢ $ 93¢ $ 6,79¢ $ 1,47C $ — 3 12,47¢
Net income (loss $ 421 $ 382 % 4,19¢ % 52t % (3.22¢) $ 2,29¢
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 77¢  $ 2 $ 48¢ $ 41 $ — 3 1,30¢
Dividend and interest incon $ 10C $ — $ 42 $ — $ 25 % 167
Interest expens $ — 3 — $ 19¢ $ — % — 19¢€
Income tax expens $ — 3 — 3 — $ — 3 1,35 $ 1,35(
Three Months Ended February 28,

2010

Net sales $ 48,04t $ 8,48¢ $ — $ 159 $ — $ 58,13t
International sale $ 4,43¢ $ 8,44¢ 3% — o $ o $ 12,88(
Gross profi $ 586t $ 665 $ — $ 1,59¢ $ — 3 8,121
Net income (loss $ 2,99 $ 198 $ — $ 87t % (2,339 $ 1,73¢
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 797 $ 2 % — $ 45 $ — 3 844
Dividend and interest incor $ 62 $ — 3 — $ — 3 80 $ 142
Interest expens $ 4 $ — 3 — 8 — $ — 3 4
Income tax expens $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 1,07 $ 1,07z
Nine Months Ended February 2

2011

Net sales $ 128,91: $ 48,29t 3 26,96¢ $ 4,45¢ $ — 3 208,63(
International sale $ 13,52¢ $ 47,978 $ 21,12 $ o s o $ 82,62:
Gross profit $ 13,38¢ $ 3,09t $ 15,20¢ $ 4,45¢ $ — 3 36,15(
Net income (loss $ 4871 $ 1,366 $ 7,73: % 1,641 $ (8,960 $ 6,657
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,331 $ 6 $ 1,451 $ 11€ $ — 3 3,91(
Dividend and interest incor $ 174 $ — 3 104 $ — 3 112 % 391
Interest expens $ 2 $ — 3 62¢ $ — 3 — 3 631
Income tax expens $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 3,911 $ 3,911
Nine Months Ended February z

2010

Net sales $ 132,22 $ 43,26 $ — 3 4517 $ — % 180,00¢
International sale $ 11,44 $ 40,87 $ — 3 o $ o $ 52,317
Gross profi $ 17,001 $ 2,89¢ $ — $ 4517 $ — 3 24,41«
Net income (loss $ 8,37¢ % 1,251 $ — 8 251: % (6,697 $ 5,452
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 2,25t $ 6 $ — 8 13C $ — 3 2,391
Dividend and interest incon $ 157 $ — $ — 3 — $ 53¢ $ 69€
Interest expens $ 8 $ — 3 — $ — 3 — $ 8
Income tax expens $ — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 3,24¢ % 3,24¢
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During the nine months ended February 27, 201 1Fatduary 28, 2010, sales to the Company’s topdustomers accounted for
45% and 48%, respectively, of revenues with the gamy’s top customer from the Food Products Techyyosgment, Costco Wholesale
Corp., accounting for 16% and 20% for the nine rheminded February 27, 2011 and February 28, 284pectively. The Company expects
that, for the foreseeable future, a limited nunmdfesustomers may continue to account for a sigaifiqortion of its net revenues.

17. Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated and disclosed subseenmmis through the date of the issuance of thadiahstatements.
Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjigrctvith the unaudited consolidated financial stegats and accompanying notes
included in Part I-ltem 1 of this Form 10-Q and ¢helited consolidated financial statements andrapanying notes and Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebsults of Operations included in Landec’s Annugp&t on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended May 30, 201

Except for the historical information containeddiar the matters discussed in this report are faivi@oking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchancfeof1934. These forward-looking statements imgalertain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materiallynirthose in the forward-looking statements. Po#énigks and uncertainties include, without
limitation, those mentioned in this Form 10-Q ahdse mentioned in Landec’s Annual Report on ForrKX0r the fiscal year ended May
2010. Landec undertakes no obligation to updatevase any forward-looking statements in ordereftect events or circumstances that may
arise after the date of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

During the quarter, as a result of the ComparyVvestment in Windset, fair value measurementewdopted as a critical account
policy.

Fair value measurements

The Company carries a portion of its assets aidlitias at fair value.

Under U.S. GAAP there is a three-level valuatiocgraichy for disclosure of fair value measuremehitsinstrument’s categorization
within the hierarchy is based on the lowest le¥ehput that is significant to the fair value messment. Therefore, for instruments classified
in levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy, where inpues@incipally based on observable market dataetlseless judgment applied in arriving at a
fair value measurement. For instruments classifigedin level 3 of the hierarchy, judgments are msignificant. The Company reviews and
updates the fair value hierarchy classificationaauarterly basis. Changes from one quarter to¢ixerelated to the observability of inputs
to a fair value measurement may result in a reifleaton between hierarchy levels.

The Company determines fair value based on quotrllenprices, where available. If listed pricegjootes are not available, fair

value is based on internally developed modelsptiatarily use as inputs market-based or indepetylsotirced market parameters. The
Company’s process is intended to ensure that plicgble inputs are appropriately calibrated to keddata.
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For instruments classified within level 3 of thetarchy, judgments used to estimate fair value beagignificant. In arriving at an
estimate of fair value for an instrument withinéé8, management must first determine the apprepneodel to use. Second, due to the lack
of observability of significant inputs, managementst assess all relevant empirical data in derivadgation inputs — including, but not
limited to, projected cash flows, growth rates #meldiscount rates. In addition to market inforioatmodels also incorporate transaction
details, such as maturity. The judgments madeypieally affected by the type of product and p&sific contractual terms. The valuation is
performed by an independent valuation specialist.

The valuation of an investment in a non-public camy fair value, requires significant managemaedgment due to the absence of
guoted market prices, the inherent lack of liqyi@ihd the long-term nature of such assets. Eactigguealuations are reviewed using
available and relevant market data to determitigeifcarrying value of these investments shoulddpgsted. Such market data primarily
include observations of the trading multiples dblzicompanies considered comparable to the notigpobmpanies being valued, if
available, and the operating performance of theetgthg non-public company, including its histofiead projected net income and cash
flows. Valuations are adjusted to account for conygspecific issues, the lack of liquidity inherémta nonpublic investment, and the fact that
comparable public companies are not identical éoctmpanies being valued. In addition, a varietgdifitional factors are reviewed by
management, including, but not limited to, finamcand sales transactions with third parties, fuexgectations of the particular investment,
changes in market outlook and the third-party feiag environment. The valuation of investment @m+public company is included in level
3 of the valuation hierarchy.

Imprecision in estimating unobservable market iman affect the amount of gain or loss recordea foarticular position.
Furthermore, while the Company believes its vabratnethods are appropriate and consistent witretbbsther market participants, the use
of different methodologies or assumptions to deteenthe fair value of certain financial instrumeotsild result in a different estimate of fair
value at the reporting date.

There have been no other material changes to thg@uy's critical accounting policies which are imtdd and described in the Fc
10-K for the fiscal year ended May 30, 2010 filedhwthe Securities and Exchange Commission on Aut2s2010.

The Company

Landec Corporation and its subsidiaries (“Landacthe “Company”) design, develop, manufacture aidpolymer products for
food and agricultural products, medical devices lesahsed partner applications that incorporatedea’s patented polymer
technologies. The Company has two proprietarymelytechnology platforms: 1) Intelimer® polymeasad 2) Hyaluronan (“HA”")
biopolymers. The Company’s polymer technologié&ma@with its customer relationships and trade raraee the foundation, and a key
differentiating advantage upon which Landec ha# bimibusiness.

After the acquisition of Lifecore Biomiedl, Inc. (“Lifecore”) on April 30, 2010, Lande®w has four core businesses — Food
Products Technology, Export, HA-based Biomatemad Technology Licensing, each of which is desctibelow.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Apio, operates our ¢c&woducts Technology business, combining Landaoprietary food
packaging technology with the capabilities of @éanational food supplier and value-added producegssor. In Apio’s value-added
operations, produce is processed by trimming, wastmixing, and packaging into bags and traysiti@airporate Landec’s Breathe W&y
membrane technology. The BreatheWay membraneaseseshelf life and reduces shrink (waste) foileessand, for certain products,
eliminates the need for ice during the distributdgule and helps to ensure that consumers recedgh produce by the time the product m:
its way through the supply chain. Apio also licemshe BreatheWay technology to ChiquBaands International, Inc. (“Chiquita”) for
packaging and distribution of bananas and avocaddso Windset Farms for packaging of greenhouseigicucumbers, peppers and
tomatoes.

Apio also operates the Export businkssugh its Cal Ex Trading Company (“Cal-Ex”). Theport business purchases and sells
whole fruit and vegetable products to predominaAsian markets.
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Our newly acquired wholly-owned subsigjd_ifecore, operates our HA-based Biomaterialsibess and is principally involved in
the development and manufacture of products utiifiyaluronan, a naturally occurring polysacchatiid is widely distributed in the
extracellular matrix of connective tissues in battimals and humans. Lifecore’s products are pilynsold to three medical segments: (1)
Ophthalmic, (2) Orthopedic and (3) Veterinary. ddbre also supplies hyaluronan to customers pugsathrer medical applications, such as
aesthetic surgery, medical device coatings, tissiggneering and pharmaceuticals. Lifecore levesdtgdermentation process to manufacture
premium, pharmaceutical-grade hyaluronan, andsiptic filling capabilities to deliver HA finishegbods to its customers. Lifecore also
manufactures and sells its own HA-based finisheatlgo Lifecore is known in the medical segmenta peemium supplier of HA. Its name
recognition allows Lifecore to acquire new custosreend sell new products with only a small marketingales capability.

Landec’s Technology Licensing business developpr@tary polymer technologies and applies themvvide range of applications
including seed coatings and treatments, temperatdieators, controlled release systems, drug defivpressure sensitive adhesives and
personal care products. These applications arenawnialized through partnerships with third partiesulting in licensing and royalty
revenues. For example, Monsanto Company (“Mon&phts an exclusive license to our Intellicoat®deeating technology for specific
seed treatment applications, Air Products and Coalsyilnc. (“Air Products”) has an exclusive licerie our Intelimer polymers for personal
care products and Nitta Corporation (“Nitta”) lises Landec’s proprietary pressure sensitive adee$&ir use in the manufacture of
electronic components by their customers.

Landec was incorporated on October 31, 1986. Wepteted our initial public offering in 1996 and ddommon Stock is listed on
The NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbdNC.” Our principal executive offices are located&03 Haven Avenue, Menlo
Park, California 94025 and our telephone numb&35¢€) 306-1650.

Description of Core Business

Landec participates in four core business segmef, Inc. with the Food Products Technology &xgbort businesses, Lifecore
Biomedical, Inc., with Hyaluronan-based Biomateriblisiness and Landec’s Technology Licensing bssine

Landec Caorporation

]

Proprietary Polymer Science Technology

Food Products Export Hyaluronan-based Technology Licensing
Technology Biomaterials

Food Products Technology Business

The Company began marketing its proprietary Intetiibased BreatheWay® membranes in 1996 for udeeifrésh-cut produce
packaging market, one of the fastest growing seggriarthe produce industry. Landec’s proprietargdheWay packaging technology
when combined with fresh-cut or whole produce tssinl packaged produce with increased shelf lifé rduced shrink (waste) without the
need for ice during the distribution cycle. Theuléing products are referred to as “value-addedtipcts. During the fiscal year ended May
30, 2010, Apio shipped nearly seventeen millionares of produce to leading supermarket retailelmlesalers, foodservice suppliers and
club stores throughout the United States and iatemally, primarily in Canada.

There are four major distinguishing characteristitépio that provide competitive advantages in fle®d Products Technology
market:

Value-Added Supplier: Apio has structured its business as a marketeselhet of fresh-cut and whole value-added produtes

focused on selling products under its Eat Smargtrand other brands for its fresh-cut and wholeeradded products. As retalil
grocery and club store chains consolidate, Apiwa8 positioned as a single source of a broad rafigeoducts.
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Reduced Farming Risks: Apio reduces its farming risk by not taking owstap of farmland, and instead, contracts with gneaer
produce and enters in joint ventures with growergpfoduce. The year-round sourcing of produ@key component to the fresh-
cut and whole value-added processing business.

Lower Cost Structure: Apio has strategically invested in the fresh-cud amole value-added business. Apio’s 136,000 st
value-added processing plant is automated witle-gththe-art vegetable processing equipment. ¥ikgall of Apio’s value-added
products utilize Apio’s proprietary BreatheWay paghg technology. Apio’s strategy is to operate onedazgntral processing
facility in one of California’s largest, lowest ¢ggowing regions (Santa Maria Valley) and use paikg technology to allow for the
nationwide delivery of fresh produce products.

Expanded Product Line Using TechnologyApio, through the use of its BreatheWay packagiteghnology, is introducing on average
fifteen new value-added products each year. Theseproduct offerings range from various sizesedlfi-cut bagged products, to
vegetable trays, to whole produce, to vegetabkrdsadnd snack packs. During the last twelve mo#athi® has introduced 10 new
products.

Apio established its Apio Packaging division in 846 advance the sales of BreatheWay packaging¢daty for shelflife sensitive
vegetables and fruit. The Company’s specialty paitkgfor case liner products extends the shelfdffeertain produce commaodities up to
50%. This shelf life extension can enable thezatilon of alternative distribution strategies airgefficiencies or reach new markets while
maintaining product quality to the end customer.

Apio Packaging'’s first program has concentratedamanas and was formally consummated when Apigeshteto an agreement to
supply Chiquita with its proprietary banana packggechnology on a worldwide basis for the ripenitmnservation and shelf-life extension
of bananas for most applications on an exclusisistand for other applications on a non-exclusagi$ In addition, Apio provides Chiquita
with ongoing research and development and proeesmology support for the BreatheWay membranesagd, and technical service
support throughout the customer chain in ordesgisain the development and market acceptandeedethnology.

For its part, Chiquita provides marketing, disttibn and retail sales support for Chiquita® banaswd worldwide in BreatheWay
packaging. To maintain the exclusive license, Gitggmust meet quarterly minimum purchase threshofBreatheWay banana packages.

In fiscal year 2008, the Company expanded the tige BreatheWay technology to include avocadosmadgos under an expanded
licensing agreement with Chiquita. Commercial saltavocados packaged in Landec’s BreatheWay padkanto the food service industry
began late in fiscal year 2008 and commercial retdés began in fiscal year 2010.

In June 2008, Apio entered into a collaboratioreagrent with Seminis Vegetable Seeds, Inc., a wimllged subsidiary of
Monsanto, to develop novel broccoli and caulifloywesducts for the exclusive sale by Apio in the thgkmerican market. These novel
products will be packaged in Landec’s proprietargddheWay packaging and will be sold to retail grgahains, club stores and the food
service industry. Field trials for the initial ¢gat variety began in the Fall of 2008 and has tae#mral years to develop and initial comme
test markets are scheduled to begin in the Spifi2@dl.

In June 2010, Apio entered into an exclusive lieemgreement with Windset Farms for Windset toagtiliandec’s proprietary
breathable packaging to extend the shelf life eeghouse grown cucumbers, peppers and tomatoes.
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On February 15, 2011, Apio entered into a sharelage agreement (the “Purchase Agreemevith) Windset Holdings 2010 Ltd.,
Canadian corporation (“Windset”). Pursuant to thiecRase Agreement, Apio purchased 150,000 senébemped shares for $15 million and
201 common shares for $201 that were issued by $inthe “Purchased Shares”). The Compsaegmmon shares represent a 20.1% int
in Windset. The non-voting senior preferred shgiekl a cash dividend of 7.5% annually. The dividés payable within 90 days of each
anniversary of the execution of the Purchase AgesgnThe Purchase Agreement includes a put andgtidin, which can be exercised on
sixth anniversary of the Purchase Agreement whefglly can exercise the put to sell its Purchaseaté&hto Windset, or Windset can
exercise the call to purchase the Purchased StraresApio, in either case, at a price equal to 20df the appreciation in the fair market
value of Windset from the date of the Company’sstment through the put/call date, plus the puecipaise of the Purchased Shardgnder
the terms of the arrangement with Windset, the Gaongps entitled to designate one of five membergherBoard of Directors of Windset.

Export Business

Export revenues consist of revenues generatedtfiepurchase and sale of primarily whole commoilitit and vegetable products
to Asia through Apio’s export company, Cal-Ex. TExport business is a buy/sell business that rsbzcommission-based margin on
average in the 6-7% range.

Hyaluronan-based Biomaterials Business
Our HA-based Biomaterials business, operated thrawg Lifecore subsidiary, was acquired by Lande@pril 30, 2010.

Lifecore intends to use its fermentation proceskaseptic formulation and filling expertise to bleader in the development of HA-
based products for multiple applications and t@ta#tvantage of non-HA device and drug opportunitieieh leverage our expertise in HA
manufacture and syringe filling capabilities. Ebts of Lifecore’s strategy include the following:

. Establish strategic relationships with market leede Lifecore will continue to develop applications firoducts with
partners who have strong marketing, sales andhiistsn capabilities to end-user markets. Lifecttm®ugh its strong reputation and history
of providing premium HA products has been ablestalish long-term relationships with the markeidieg companies such as Alcon and
Abbott Medical Optics in ophthalmology, and Mus@Keletal Transplant Foundation (MTF) and Novartis iz orthopedics.

. Expand medical applications for hyaluronarbue to the growing knowledge of the unique cbemstics of HA and the
role it plays in normal physiology, Lifecore cont#s to identify and pursue further uses for HAtimeo medical applications, such as wound
care, aesthetic surgery, adhesion prevention, dieligery, device coatings and pharmaceuticals.Heurapplications may involve expanding
process development activity and/or additionaliging of technology.

. Utilize manufacturing infrastructure to pursue catt aseptic filling and fermentation opportunitiésfecore will continue
to evaluate providing contract services for oppuities that are suited for the capital and facilityestment related to aseptic filling
equipment, fermentation and purification.

. Maintain flexibility in product development and plyprelationships. Lifecore’s vertically integrated development and
manufacturing capabilities allow it to establishagiety of relationships with global corporate parts. Lifecore’s role in these relationships
extends from supplying HA raw materials to manufaog of aseptically-packaged, finished steriledarcts to developing and manufacturing
its own proprietary products.

Technology Licensing Businesses

The Technology and Market Opportunity: Intellicoat Seed Coatings

Following the sale of FCD, Landec Ag'’s strategy haen to work closely with Monsanto to further depeour patented, functional
polymer coating technology for sale and/or licegdimthe seed industry. In accordance with itsrge and supply agreement with Monsanto,

Landec Ag is currently focused on commercializingducts for the seed corn market and then plabsaaden the technology to other seed
crop applications.
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Landec's Intellicoat seed coating applicationsdasgned to control seed germination timing, inseeerop yields, reduce risks and
extend crop-planting windows. In addition, Intediat seed coatings can control the release of aredangredient, such as pesticides and
insecticides, either through time or change in terafure which leads to increased yields and feppliGations of chemicals which reduces
costs. These coatings are currently availableytanith corn, soybeans and male inbred corn usedéded production. In fiscal year 2000,
Landec Ag launched its first commercial product)iRator Plus® coatings, which is a coating application used dssompanies as a
method for spreading pollination to increase yieldd reduce risk in the production of hybrid seehc There are approximately 650,000
acres of seed production in the United States 2010 Pollinator Plus was used by 10 seed compami@pproximately 18% of the seed
corn production acres in the U.S.

Monsanto announced in 2008 that it had formed almesiness called the Seed Treatment Business wiilichllow Monsanto to
develop its seed treatment requirements interndllye concept of seed treatments is to place atticgde or fungicide directly onto the seed
surface in order to protect the seed and the sepd$ it emerges. Landec’s Intellicoat seed cgagnhnology could be an integral and
proprietary part of Monsanto’s commitment to builglia major position in seed treatments worldwideiding Landec’s seed coatings as a
“carrier” of insecticides/fungicides which can bepmknsed at the appropriate time based on timeilotesnperature. During fiscal year 2010
we amended our agreement with Monsanto and asith oes development activities are focused on &ifiggechnology of interest to
Monsanto.

The Technology and Market Opportunity: Intelimer Polymer Applications

We believe our technology has commercial poteirial wide range of industrial, consumer and medipalications beyond those
identified in our other segments. For example,amre patented technology, Intelimer materials,lmanised to trigger release of catalysts,
insecticides or fragrances just by changing theperature of the Intelimer materials or to activadbesives through controlled temperature
change. In order to exploit these opportunities have entered into and will enter into licensing aollaborative corporate agreements for
product development and/or distribution in cerfééfds. However, given the infrequency and unpstediility of when the Company may
enter into any such licensing and research andaewent arrangements, the Company is unable téodisdts financial expectations in
advance of entering into such arrangements.

Industrial Materials and Adhesivt

Landec’s industrial product development stratedyp i®cus on coatings, catalysts, resins, additaresadhesives in the polymer
materials market. During the product developméages, the Company identifies corporate partnessipport the ongoing development and
testing of these products, with the ultimate gddloensing the applications at the appropriateetim

Intelimer Latent Catalyst Polymer Syste

Landec has developed latent catalysts useful ienetihg pot-life, extending shelf life, reducing weaand improving thermoset cure
methods. Some of these latent catalysts are dlyrisging distributed by Akzo-Nobel Chemicals Bt¥rough our licensing agreement with
Air Products. The rights to develop and sell Larisi¢éatent catalysts and personal care technolagée licensed to Air Products in March
2006.

Personal Care and Cosmetic Applicatic

Landec’s personal care and cosmetic applicationsesfy is focused on supplying Intelimer materialindustry leaders for use in
lotions and creams, as well as color cosmeticstitiks and hair care. The Company's partner, Ade&cts, is currently shipping products to
L'Oreal, The Mentholatum Company and other compmfoe use in lotions and creams. The rights teettgvand sell Landec’s polymers for
personal care products were licensed to Air Pradimckarch 2006 along with the latent catalyst tsgh
Intelimer Drug Delivery Polymet

Landec has been developing both biodegradable amdiodegradable polymers for use in drug delivagrplications targeting the

use of its highly crystalline polymers and the tlegphysical properties to minimize or eliminatediyextend drug release profiles and
deliver novel valuable properties to the pharmaugtiy.
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Results of Operations

Revenuegin thousands):

Threemonths  Three months Nine months Nine months
ended 02/27/11  ended 02/28/10  Change ended 02/27/11 ended 02/28/10  Change

Apio Value Added $ 47,22¢ $ 47,48 Q)% $ 127,05( $ 130,50! (3)%
Apio Packaging A7¢€ 564 (15)% 1,861 1,721 8%

Technology Subtotal 47,70 48,04 D)% 128,91: 132,22¢ (3)%
Apio Export 12,17¢ 8,48¢ 43% 48,29¢ 43,26¢ 12%

Total Apio 59,88: 56,53¢ 6% 177,20’ 175,49: 1%
HA 12,157 — N/M 26,96¢ — N/M
Tech. Licensing 1,47( 1,59¢ (8)% 4,45¢ 4,517 (1)%

Total Revenues $ 73,50¢ $ 58,13 26% $ 208,63( $ 180,00¢ 16%

Apio Value Added

Apio’s value-added revenues consist of revenuesrgéed from the sale of specialty packaged frestaied whole value-added
processed vegetable products that are washed akdgeal in our proprietary packaging and sold udgio’s Eat Smart brand and various
private labels. In addition, value-added reverinelside the revenues generated from Apio Coolirg, & vegetable cooling operation in
which Apio is the general partner with a 60% owhgrgosition.

The decrease in Apio's valaelded revenues for the three months ended Fel2da®011 compared to the same period last yea
primarily due to weather related produce supplygsswhich reduced unit sales volumes by 5% beaafuspio’s inability to meet customer
demand. The decrease was partially offset by ad#éase in unit sales volumes related to new proidiroductions.

The decrease in Apio's value-added revenues faritttemonths ended February 27, 2011 compareceteaime period last year was
primarily due to a decrease in valadded unit sales volumes of 6%. The decreaseitisaies volumes was due to a reduction in prometi
activity which reduced unit sales volumes by 5% dud to Apio exiting business that would have reslin less than acceptable gross profit
margins which reduced unit sales volumes by an@#er These decreases in unit sales volumes wetiallyaoffset by increased unit sales
volumes related to new product introductions whidreased unit sales volumes by 2%. The revenuedse related to decreased unit sales
volumes was patrtially offset by a year over yeax afiange to greater sales of higher revenue p@rcaroducts from lower revenue per
carton products compared to the same periods éastand from a larger percentage of Apio's valdéed revenues being generated from
to club stores rather than retail grocery chains.

Apio Packaging

Apio packaging revenues consist of Apio’s packadeupnology business using its BreatheWay membeaieology. The first
commercial application included in Apio packagisgur banana packaging technology.

The decrease in Apio packaging revenues for treethmonths ended February 27, 2011 compared t@the period last year and 1
increase in Apio packaging revenues for the ninathmoended February 27, 2011 compared to the sariagpast year were primarily due to
the timing of the sale of BreatheWay membraneshtiguta for use on avocado applications. Chigpitechased a sizable quantity of
BreatheWay membranes during the first quartersafafi year 2011 and therefore purchased less dilmingecond and third quarters of fiscal
year 2011

Apio Export

Apio export revenues consist of revenues genefadedthe purchase and sale of primarily whole corditydfruit and vegetable
products to Asia by Cal-Ex. Apio records revengeas to the sale price to third parties becautak@s title to the product while in transit.
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The increase in revenues in Apio’s export busifesthe three and nine months ended February @71 2ompared to the same
periods last year was primarily due to an 41% &b Increase in export sales volumes, respectiasly result of an increased supply of
to export.

Hyaluronan-based (“HA”) Biomaterials

Lifecore principally generates revenue throughsile of products containing HA. Lifecore primaisiglls products to customers in
three medical segments: (1) Ophthalmic, (2) Ortdapand (3) Veterinary. Lifecore was acquired qrif30, 2010. From the acquisition
date through February 27, 2011, Lifecore has adéadcustomers and has expanded its product offetingxisting customers.

Technology Licensing

Technology Licensing revenues consist of reveneegigted from the licensing agreements with Momsakit Products and Nitta.

The change in Technology Licensing revenues fothihee and nine months ended February 27, 2011 @@dto the same periods
of the prior year was not significant to consolatht. andec revenues.

Gross Profit (in thousands):

Threemonths  Three months Nine months Nine months
ended 02/27/11  ended 02/28/10  Change ended 02/27/11 ended 02/28/10  Change

Apio Value Added $ 287t $ 5,38t @n% $ 11,827 $ 15,50( 24)%
Apio Packaging 39¢ 48( (17)% 1,561 1,501 4%
Technology Subtotal 3,27¢ 5,86¢ (44)% 13,38¢ 17,00: (21)%
Apio Export 937 662 41% 3,09¢ 2,89¢ 7%

Total Apio 4,21( 6,52¢ (36)% 16,48 19,89’ @n%
HA 6,79¢ — N/M 15,20+ — N/M
Tech. Licensing 1,47( 1,59¢ (8)% 4,45¢ 4517 (1)%

Total Gross Profit $ 12,47¢ $ 8,127 54% $ 36,15( $ 24,41 48%

General

There are numerous factors that can influence gnadg including product mix, customer mix, manciiaring costs, volume, sale
discounts and charges for excess or obsolete iomerib name a few. Many of these factors inflleeocare interrelated with other
factors. The Company includes in cost of salesfdlhe costs related to the sale of products aoatance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. These costs include thiedohg: raw materials (including produce, casegeds and packaging), direct labor,
overhead (including indirect labor, depreciatiomd #acility related costs) and shipping and shigpilated costs. The following are the
primary reasons for the changes in gross profitferthree and nine months ended February 27, @hpared to the same periods last year
as outlined in the table above.

Apio Value-Added

The decrease in gross profit for Apio’s value-adgpeécialty packaging vegetable business for theethmonths ended February 27,
2011 compared to the same period last year wasaphntue to shortages of produce due to cold aetweather in California during the
Company’s third fiscal quarter which reduced gnosdit by approximately $2.4 million. The decreasegross profit for Apio’s value-added
specialty packaging vegetable business for the mioeths ended February 27, 2011 compared to the panod last year was primarily due
to shortages of produce due to cold and wet weath@alifornia during the period from November 2ahéough February 2011 which
reduced gross profit by $4.6 million and from lowevenues which decreased gross profit by apprdri;n&350,000. These decreases were
partially offset by a year over year mix change@eater sales of higher margin tray products frowelr margin products and fewer
promotions on bag products compared to the saniedsdeast year.
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Apio Packaging

The decrease in Apio packaging gross profit forttiee months ended February 27, 2011 compardubtsame period last year and
the increase in Apio packaging gross profit fortivee months ended February 27, 2011 compareckteaime period last year was primarily
due to the timing of the sale of BreatheWay memésan Chiquita for use on avocado applicationsiq@@ta purchased a sizable quantity of
BreatheWay membranes during the first quartersafafi year 2011 and therefore purchased less dilmingecond and third quarters of fiscal
year 2011

Apio Export

Apio’s export business is a buy/sell business ithalizes a commission-based margin in the 6-7%eafde increase in gross profit
for Apio’s Export business during the three andcemmonths ended February 27, 2011 compared to the pariod last year was due to a 43%
and 12% increase in revenues, respectively.

HA-based Biomaterials

Lifecore operates in the higher margin medical deviindustry and has historically realized an di/grass margin of approximate
50%. Through the first nine months of fiscal y2ai 1, Lifecore’s overall gross margin was 56% dua favorable sales mix. Lifecore was
acquired on April 30, 2010.

Technology Licensing

The decrease in Technology Licensing gross profitHe three and nine months ended February 27, @hpared to the same
periods of the prior year was not significant tosalidated Landec gross profit.

Operating Expensegqin thousands):

Threemonths  Three months Nine months Nine months
ended 02/27/11 ended 02/28/10  Change ended 02/27/11  ended 02/28/10  Change

Research and Development:

Apio $ 284 % 27¢ 3% $ 75 % 87¢ (14)%
HA 1,04¢€ — N/M 3,191 — N/M
Tech. Licensing 94t 724 31% 2,81¢ 2,00/ 41%
Total R&D $ 2,27 $ 99¢ 128% $ 6,76z $ 2,88( 135%
Selling, General and Administrative:
Apio $ 3,19¢ $ 3,047 5% $ 9,411 $ 9,15¢ 3%
HA 1,357 — N/M 3,60¢ — N/M
Corporate 1,902 1,33¢ 42% 5,164 3,97¢ 30%
Total S,G&A $ 6,45¢ $ 4,38¢ 147% $ 18,18: $ 13,13¢ 38%

Research and Development

Landec’s research and development expenses cprigigtrily of expenses involved in product developirend commercialization
initiatives. Research and development efforts@bAre focused on the Company’s proprietary BreAthy membranes used for packaging
produce, with recent focus on extending the slifeloff bananas and other shelf-life sensitive vagies and fruit. In the HA business, the
research and development efforts primarily relateethnical development efforts to support custospecific product requests or process
improvements, under which technical modificatiors made to existing products or processes to mestvmmer specific needs and such work
can also lead to new products or processes. Ifigbbnology Licensing business, the research anelaement efforts are focused on uses
for the proprietary Intelimer polymers outside obdl and HA.

The increase in research and development expemstefthree and nine months ended February 27, 26hpared to the same

periods last year was primarily due to the reseanthdevelopment expenses from Lifecore and froim@ease in scientific staff in our
Technology Licensing business to support the dgweémnt of new product applications.
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Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses cbpgeisarily of sales and marketing expenses assatiaith Landec’s product sales
and services, business development expenses dhdrstaadministrative expenses.

The increase in selling, general and administragxgenses for the three and nine months ended &wgi2d, 2011 compared to the
same periods last year was primarily due to thengelgeneral and administrative expenses for ldfecand from increased accounting anc
fees of $349,000 and $441,000, respectively andaease in the share-based compensation expe@semrate of $161,000 and $712,000,
respectively.

Other (in thousands):

Threemonths  Three months Nine months Nine months

ended 02/27/11  ended 02/28/10  Change ended 02/27/11 ended 02/28/10  Change
Dividend and I nterest Income $ 167 $ 14z 18% $ 391 $ 69€ (44)%
I nterest Expense $ (196) $ 4 NM  $ (631 $ (8) N/M
Other Expense $ (44 $ — NM  $ (14¢) $ — N/M
Income Taxes $ (1,350 $ (1,072 26% $ (3,910 $ (3,249 20%
Noncontrolling I nterest $ (249) $ (74) (68)% $ (251) $ (389 (34)%

Dividend and Interest Income

The increase in dividend and interest income ferttiiee months ended February 27, 2011 comparthe same period last year was
primarily due to recording $47,000 of dividend ino®related to our ownership of senior preferredeshm Windset. The decrease in interest
income for the nine months ended February 27, 20iipared to the same period last year was primduigyto less cash to invest because of
the cash used to acquire Lifecore and from loweldgi on investments due to declines in interestrat

Interest Expense

The increase in interest expense during the thrdenane months ended February 27, 2011 compardabtsame periods last year
was due to the interest expense on the crediitiaeittered into on April 30, 2010 in conjunctioitivthe acquisition of Lifecore.

Other Expenses
The other expense is for the amortization of tlsealint on Lifecore’s earnout obligation (see Ngte 2
Income Taxes

The increase in the income tax expense for the thnel nine months ended February 27, 2011 is da@8%% and 19% increase,
respectively, in net income before taxes compavdé same periods last year. The effective texfoa both the three and nine months
ended February 27, 2011 was 37 percent compar@®i percent and 37 percent for the same periodsdalfyear 2010. The effective tax re
for the three and nine months ended February 217} #tifer from the statutory federal income tareraf 35 percent as a result of several
factors, including state taxes, non-deductiblelstmsed compensation expense, and tax exemptshtéreaddition to the above, the
Company was able to further reduce the effectixedte for fiscal year 2011 as a result of beimgapient of a therapeutic drug credit award
and the extension of the federal research and dgwant credit. The effective tax rates for the¢hand nine months ended February 27,
2011 differed from the statutory federal incomerabe as a result of the same state taxes, norztieldustock-based compensation expense,
and tax exempt interest factors.
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Noncontrolling Interest
The noncontrolling interest consists of the limifedtners’ equity interest in the net income of &@iooling, LP.

The decrease in the noncontrolling interest forttinee and nine months ended February 27, 2011 a@dto the same periods last
year was not significan

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of February 27, 2011, the Company had cash asld equivalents of $6.7 million, a net decreask2df1 million from $27.8
million at May 30, 2010.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Landec generated $12.4 million of cash flow fronergting activities during the nine months endedriraty 27, 2011 compared to
generating $7.1 million of cash flow from operatitivities for the nine months ended February228,0. The primary sources of cash fr
operating activities during the nine months endelr&ary 27, 2011 were from generating $6.9 milbdbmet income and non-cash related net
expenses of $3.9 million and from a net increasklod million in working capital. The primary ctges in working capital were (a) a $2.4
million increase in income taxes receivable duenprily to the tax benefit from the stock-based cengation expense, (b) a $2.8 million
increase in inventories due to an $811,000 increeE&port inventories that were in transit at émel of the quarter due to the timing of
shipments and a $735,000 increase in Apio packagirentory resulting from the availability of volweriscounts and a $1.3 million increase
in inventories at Lifecore due to the build up mfeéntory for expected new business, (c) an $824d@@0ease in prepaid expenses primarily
due to amortization of prepaid insurance and taxesthe collection of advances on produce, andr{d)842,000 increase in accrued
compensation primarily due to accrued bonusesfattre.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the mmanths ended February 27, 2011 was $31.2 millionpaoed to $44.4 million for tt
same period last year. The primary uses of casivesting activities during the first nine monthfdiscal year 2011 were from (a) the
purchase of $4.9 million of property, plant andipquent primarily for the further expansion of Apsoralue-added processing facility and the
further automation of Apio’s value-added procesdawility and the purchase of equipment at Lifecmrsupport the addition of new
customers, (b) the net purchase of $11.3 milliomafketable securities and (c) the purchase ofillion of preferred and common share:
Windset.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the mimenths ended February 27, 2011 was $2.4 millionpaoed to net cash provided by
financing activities of $235,000 for the same pest year. The use of cash from financing atgisiduring the first nine months of fiscal
year 2011 was primarily from $2.9 million of lc-term debt payments and the repurchase of $1.milif the Company’s outstanding
Common Stock, partially offset by the tax benefiini stock-based compensation of $2.0 million.

Capital Expenditures

During the nine months ended February 27, 2011deamrontinued its expansion of Apio’s value-addextessing facility and

purchased vegetable processing equipment to suthy@oftirther automation of Apio’s value added pssieg facility and equipment to
support the addition of new customers at Lifecorbese expenditures represented the majority ob4h@ million of capital expenditures.
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Debt

On April 30, 2010 in conjunction with the acquisitiof Lifecore, Lifecore entered into a $20 milliGnedit Agreement with Wells
Fargo Bank N.A. (“Wells Fargo”) with a five yearre that provides for equal monthly principal payitsgplus interest. The Credit
Agreement contains certain restrictive covenantsclvrequire Lifecore to meet certain financiatsecluding minimum levels of net
income, minimum quick ratio, minimum fixed coveragdéio and maximum capital expenditures. All ofelcore’s assets have been pledge
secure the debt incurred pursuant to the Crediedment. Landec is the guarantor of the debt. Qguat 9, 2010 and September 14, 2010,
the Company amended its Credit Agreement with Wedigjo to modify certain financial covenants. &ngendment on August 9, 2010
amended the definition of the net income of Lifector exclude non-recurring expenses incurred imection with the acquisition of Lifecore
and to exclude expenses related to the impactjaoftuents from purchase accounting (e.g. invenstep-up, discount on the earn out, etc.)
as they relate to the minimum net income covengmd. aforementioned adjustments were made to thalifdrecast that the Company had
previously provided Wells Fargo which was the bé&sighe covenants in the Credit Agreement and Wwinere necessary for compliance as
of May 30, 2010. The amendment on September 1) athended the definition of the net income of tdie to include only the current
fiscal year to date results as compared to theiqguewrailing four quarter basis, so as to excleiilts prior to the acquisition. In addition,
minimum net income requirement for the first quaeieded August 29, 2010 was changed to $1.00 fie®0,800. The Company was in
compliance with all financial covenants as of Feloyl27, 2011.

On May 4, 2010, the Company entered into an inteats swap agreement that has the economic effecbdifying the variable
interest obligations associated with the $20 miligredit Agreement so that the interest payabédéfectively fixed at a rate of 4.24% (see
Note 12).

On August 19, 2004, Lifecore issued variable ratkistrial revenue bonds (“IRB”). These bonds vamgumed by Landec in the
acquisition of Lifecore (see Note 2). The bondsaollateralized by a bank letter of credit whistsécured by a first mortgage on the
Company’s facility in Chaska, Minnesota. In agdif the Company pays an annual remarketing fealéqu.125% and an annual letter of
credit fee of 0.50%.

Landec is not a party to any agreements with, orradments to, any special purpose entities thatldvoanstitute material off-
balance sheet financing other than the operatmgeleommitments.

Landec's future capital requirementd dépend on numerous factors, including the pragodsts research and development
programs; the continued development of marketiatgssand distribution capabilities; the abilityl@hdec to establish and maintain new
collaborative and licensing arrangements; any d@ti® pursue additional acquisition opportunitiegather conditions that can affect the
supply and price of produce, the timing and amoifiayy, of payments received under licensing awkarch and development agreements;
the costs involved in preparing, filing, prosecgtidefending and enforcing intellectual properghts; the ability to comply with regulatory
requirements; the emergence of competitive tectyyodmd market forces; the effectiveness of prodantmercialization activities and
arrangements; and other factors. If Landexirrently available funds, together with theiinédly generated cash flow from operations are
sufficient to satisfy its capital needs, Landec lddue required to seek additional funding througieo arrangements with collaborative
partners, additional bank borrowings and publiprivate sales of its securities. There can bessarance that additional funds, if required,
will be available to Landec on favorable termstifll.

Landec believes that its cash from dip@na, along with existing cash, cash equivalentsmarketable securities will be sufficien
finance its operational and capital requirementsafdeast the next twelve months.

ltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
None.
Item 4. Controlsand Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Finandtficer, after evaluating the effectiveness of tisclosure controls and
procedures” (as defined in the Securities Exchawef 1934 (Exchange Act) Rules 13a-15(e) or 15¢e)) as of the end of the period

covered by this Quarterly Report, have concludedl ¢lar disclosure controls and procedures areteféeebased on their evaluation of these
controls and procedures required by paragraphf(Bxchange Act Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repaortin

On April 30, 2010, the Company acquired Lifecoree TCompany has expanded the scope of a numbeteafiah processes to
include Lifecore and is fully integrated as of Redoy 27, 2011. There were no other changes inndeimal controls over financial reporting
during the quarter ended February 27, 2011 thas haaterially affected, or are reasonably likelyrtaterially affect, our internal controls o
financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls:

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Chief Financial Officer, believes that oisctbsure controls and
procedures and internal control over financial répg are designed to provide reasonable assum@raehieving their objectives and are
effective at the reasonable assurance level. Howeue management does not expect that our dise@asantrols and procedures or our
internal control over financial reporting will prent all errors and all fraud. A control system matter how well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratdtib objectives of the control system are metthen, the design of a control system must
reflect the fact that there are resource constaartd the benefits of controls must be considegkadive to their costs. Because of the inherent
limitations in all control systems, no evaluatidrcontrols can provide absolute assurance thaballrol issues and instances of fraud, if any,
have been detected. These inherent limitationsidtecthe realities that judgments in decision makiug be faulty, and that breakdowns can
occur because of a simple error or mistake. Adaitily, controls can be circumvented by the indialdacts of some persons, by collusion of
two or more people or by management override ottrerols. The design of any system of controle &dased in part upon certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future eveais there can be no assurance that any desigaueidked in achieving its stated goals u
all potential future conditions; over time, congrohay become inadequate because of changes irtioasdbr the degree of compliance with
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Becausieeohherent limitations in a cost effective cohgstem, misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

As of the date of this report, the Company is npady to any legal proceedings.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes to the Congoaslyfactors which are included and describeithénForm 10-K for the fiscal
year ended May 30, 2010 filed with the Securitied Exchange Commission on August 12, 2(

Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securitiesnd Use of Proceeds
(c) The following table contains the Company’scktoepurchases of equity securities for the thindreer of the fiscal year 2011:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(©) (d)
Total Number of Maximum Number (or
Shares (or Units) Approximate Dollar

(a) (b) Purchased as Par  Value) of Shares (or
Total Number of  Average Price of Publicly Units) that May Yet
Shares (or Units Paid per Share (0 Announced Plans Be Purchased Under
Period (1) Purchased Unit) or Programs  the Plans or Programs
Month #1
November 29, 2010 to December 26, 2! -0- -0- -0- $ 8,816,00!
Month #2
December 27, 2010 to January 23, 2 -0- -0- -0- $ 8,816,001
Month #3
January 24, 2011 to February 27, 2 -0- -0- -0- $ 8,816,001
TOTAL -0- -0- -0- $ 8,816,001

(1) The reported periods conform to the Compafigtal calendar composed of thirteen weeks undewaek, 4 week and 5 week structure.

On July 14, 2010, the Company announced that tleedBaf Directors of the Company had approved thebéishment of a stock
repurchase plan which allows for the repurchaagdb $10 million of the Company’s Common StockheTCompany may repurchase its
Common Stock from time to time in open market pas#s or in privately negotiated transactions. tirhing and actual number of shares
purchased is at the discretion of management o€trapany and will depend on a variety of factams|uding stock price, corporate and
regulatory requirements, market conditions, thathet attractiveness of other capital deploymemtoofunities and other corporate
priorities. The stock repurchase program doe®hligate Landec to acquire any amount of its Com@&tmtk and the program may be
modified, suspended or terminated at any timeatthmpany’s discretion without prior notice.
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secustholders
{Removed and Reserved}

ltem 5. Other Information
None.

Iltem 6. Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Title:

10.33 Share Purchase Agreement, dated FebrGaB011, by and between Apio, Inc. and Windset khgjsl 2010 Ltd.,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.theRegistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dé&teruary 18,
2011.

31.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 302 of theb@ane-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1+ CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2+ CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 2002

+  Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causiesdRbport to be signed on
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

LANDEC CORPORATION

By: /s/ Gregory S. Skinne
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Off
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

Date: April 8, 2011
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Gary T. Steele, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly reportForm 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this reportsduoa contain any untrue statement of a matergldaomit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistarmces under which such statements were madmisleding with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandiatiesnents, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying offi and | are responsible for establishing and taimiimg disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

(@) designed such disclosure controlspandedures, or caused such disclosure controlp@ugdures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control owearicial reporting, or caused such internal cordxar financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of thygsteant's disclosure controls and procedures a@septed in this quarterly report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of tHegeovered by this quarterly report based
on such evaluation, and

(d) disclosed in this quarterly repory @hange in the registrant’s internal control ofileancial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (thgsteant’s fourth quarter in the case of an anmepbrt) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant's other certifying offi and | have disclosed, based on our most resahiation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauanmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

@) all significant deficiencies and mi@kweaknesses in the design or operation of iiatlecontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not materiagttinvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: April 8, 2011

/s| Gary T. Steel

Gary T. Steelt
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.z
CERTIFICATION

I, Gregory S. Skinner, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly reportForm 10-Q of Landec Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this reportsduoa contain any untrue statement of a matergldaomit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistarmces under which such statements were madmisleding with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finandiatiesnents, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying offi and | are responsible for establishing and taimiimg disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

(@) designed such disclosure controlspandedures, or caused such disclosure controlp@ugdures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control owearicial reporting, or caused such internal cordxar financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles ;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of thygsteant's disclosure controls and procedures a@septed in this quarterly report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of tHegeovered by this quarterly report based
on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this quarterly repory @hange in the registrant’s internal control ofileancial reporting that occurred during
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (thgsteant’s fourth quarter in the case of an anmepbrt) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

5. The registrant's other certifying offi and | have disclosed, based on our most resahiation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatauanmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

@) all significant deficiencies and mi@kweaknesses in the design or operation of iiatlecontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not materiagttinvolves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: April 8, 2011

/s/ Gregory S. Skinng

Gregory S. Skinne
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landabration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending February 27,
2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, GarySteele, Chief Executive Officer and
President of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18.0. 8 1350, as adopted pursuant to 8 906 ofahgaBes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejrerements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Re:fairly presents, in all material respects, timacial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: April 8, 2011

/s| Gary T. Steel
Gary T. Steelt
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
(Principal Executive Officer

* The foregoing certification is being furnighsolely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbandsyOxct of 2002 (subsections
(a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title UBited States Code) and is not being filed as gfathe Form 10-Q or as
a separate disclosure docume




Exhibit 32.z

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Landabration (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theipdrending February 27,
2011 as filed with the Securities and Exchange C@sion on the date hereof (the “Report))Xsregory S. Skinner, Vice President of Fina
and Adminstration and Chief Financial Officer oétGompany, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 13S@Gdopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejrerements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SemsiExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Refairly presents, in all material respects, timafcial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

Date: April 8, 2011

/s/ Gregory S. Skinng
Gregory S. Skinne
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Accounting Officer

* The foregoing certification is being furnighsolely pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbandsyOxct of 2002 (subsections
(a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title UBited States Code) and is not being filed as gfathe Form 10-Q or as
a separate disclosure docume




